
1

March 30, 2007

Riverside County Assessor’s Office
Attn: Doug Viera, Chief of Mapping

Jason Santos, Supervising GIS Specialist
4080 Lemon Street, 6th Floor Assessor
Riverside, CA 92501

Steven Andrews
225 South First Avenue, Suite 201
Arcadia, California  91006
Cell (626) 675-0181

Re: Rio Valley Estates/William and Robert Tuttle
Colorado River Land

Mr. Viera and Mr. Santos,

Previously from our meetings, you had stated a deficiency and inability to follow the chain of
title for the Tuttle’s/Rio Valley Estates, LLC land.  I have been able to find most documents and
recordings and am able to provide an exact chain of title.  I have included copies of those
documents and recordings via scanning, but due to the date and quality of the copies, these are
the most legible that I have.  I am including a narrative so that if any information is missing, you
will be able to locate the recordings and satisfy yourselves of their continuity.

The first document involves the “United States Land Office” and is dated January 30, 1888. It is
stamped by the “Surveyor General” and details “Clearance #3024”.  These lands were public
lands that were held by the United States and granted to the State of California for public school
land use by School Land Clearance No. 3024 dated January 30, 1888.  This land and title
transferred from Federal to the State of California based on the School Election Act (1853),
various acts and Executive Orders (1874, 1876), and survey in 1879.  The Federal public lands
transferred to the State of California and remained in their ownership until 1910, transferring to
Gerald C. Halsey.

The next patent involves the transfer of the public school lands to Gerald C. Halsey on October
27, 1910.  The patent mentions the March 3, 1853 Act, congress, public lands in California, and
granted to the State of California.  It refers to certificate of the Registrar of the State Land Office,
No. 12887 issued in accordance with the provision of law, legislation of the State of California,
signed by the then Governor Gillett, Secretary of State Curry, and Registrar of State Land Office
Kingsbury and grants to Gerald C. Halsey 310.53 Acres of the west half of the northwest quarter,
the northeast quarter of the northwest quarter, the northwest quarter of the southwest quarter, lots
one, two, three, and four of Section 36, T2S, R23E, San Bernardino Meridian.  It was recorded
on November 9, 1910 in Book No. 6 of Patents, Page 17, records of Riverside County,
California.

The next document is a copy of the patent from the State Land Office, No. 12887, dated 1910,
basically conveying the same information as in the previous document.
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The next transfer occurs on November 13, 1917, between Gerald C. Halsey and Ellie O’Brien.
The document references ten ($10.00) dollars in gold coin with a similar description of land and
310.53 acres.  It was recorded on November 19, 1917 in Book No. 471 of deeds, Page 320,
Records of Riverside County, California.

Ellie O’Brien then confers title to Cordelia Calkins (Cordelia Halsey) on January 12, 1918.  The
amount of $10.00 gold coin is reported for the land residing in Section 36, T2S, R23E consisting
of 310.53 acres.  This conveyance executed on January 12, 1918 and recorded on May 28, 1920
at the request of Gerald C. Halsey, into Book No. 530, Page 156, Riverside County, California.

On December 19, 1945 Cordelia Halsey grants to Agnes Gertrude Spillane that same property by
description (310.53 acres) as that provided to Gerald C. Halsey.  This deed is recorded on
February 9, 1946 at the request of Security Title Insurance Company in Book No. 725 of Official
Records, Page 268, Records of Riverside County, California.

At this point in time, the 310.53 acres appears to split with a portion granting from Agnes
Gertrude Spillane to her son John E. Spillane (recorded Jan. 27, 1949, Book 1047, Page 221,
County of Riverside, State of California) and to Raymond J. Spillane (recorded Jan. 27, 1949,
Book 1047, Page 388, County of Riverside, State of California).  The grant deeds appear to
separate the acreage and provide different legal descriptions.  For the purposes of the
Tuttle’s/Rio Valley Estates, LLC ownership and chain of title, only the Raymond J. Spillane
grant is followed.

The next document is the final recording in the chain of title.  It is dated the same day as the
previous recording on January 27, 1949 and grants title from Raymond J. Spillane to Robert E.
Tuttle and William C. Tuttle.  The legal description is the same as on the Agnes Gertrude
Spillane to Raymond J. Spillane deed.  This document is recorded March 9, 1949 at the request
of Riverside Title Company in Book 1057, Page 425, of the County of Riverside, State of
California.

The BLM land records reveal that the land is not ‘held in trust’ by the United States for CRIT
and that the land is not ‘Reservation Land’ as a matter of federal law.  These records are
consistent with the controlling legal authority.  The land cannot be ‘held in trust’ or be
considered ‘Reservation Land’ due to the 1864 Act that prohibits the expansion of this
reservation into California.  The validity of the Act and its prohibition on establishing any
portion of the Colorado River Indian Reservation as a reservation within the State of California
was upheld in Mattz v. Arnett, supra. Even the Colorado River Indian Tribes (CRIT) map of
reservation boundaries does not show the Tuttle’s/Rio Valley Estates, LLC property within the
reservation boundaries.  Their own map indicates the reservation boundary ending along the
Colorado River approximately at McCabe Road.  This can be reviewed by going to the following
tribal site http://critonline.com/crit_contents/tourism/crit_map.pdf  and I have included a copy of
the map as the first exhibit.

I hope this exhaustive title information will finally put to rest the chain of title issues that should
be reasonably discoverable by a simple research of title grants.  I was able to follow the grantor
and grantee recordings without much trouble and I would assume that with the Riverside

http://critonline.com/crit_contents/tourism/crit_map.pdf
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Counties resources and BLM, this information is readily attainable.  Please respond to this chain
of title in writing and let me know if it answers your questions, what your actions will be
regarding this issue, and answer the previous questions that were asked in the preceding
correspondences.  Your assistance is solving this long, protracted, and outstanding issue is
greatly appreciated.

Sincerely,

Steven Andrews
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